
MINUTES 
RANDOLPH COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 

September 10, 2002 
  
  

The Randolph County Planning Board met at 6:30 p.m. on Tuesday, September 10, 2002, in the 

Commissioners’ Meeting Room, Randolph County Office Building, 725 McDowell Road, Asheboro, North 

Carolina. 

  

1. Chairman Maxton McDowell called to order the Randolph County Planning Board meeting at 6:30 p.m. 

  

2. Hal Johnson, Planning Director, called roll of the members: Maxton McDowell, Chairman, present; Bill 

Dorsett, Vice Chairman, absent; Lynden Craven, absent; Al Morton, present; Phil Ridge, present; Larry 

Brown, present; and Chris McLeod, present. 

  

3. Ridge made the motion, seconded by McLeod, to approve the Minutes of the August 6, 2002, Randolph 

County Planning Board meeting.  The motion passed unanimously. 

  

4. SWEARING IN OF THE WITNESSES: 

  

“Do you swear or affirm that the information you are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and 

nothing but the truth, so help you God?” 

  

3 citizens took this oath.  

  

5. SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUESTS: 

  

A. DANIEL KEARNS, Denton, North Carolina, is requesting a Special Use Permit to operate an 

automotive repair business in an existing 30' x 20' building to be located at his residence at 4951 

Hoover Grove Road on 1.36 acres, Concord Township, Zoning District RA, Parcel ID # 

7700845775. 

  

The Technical Review Committee met and recommends to the County Planning Board that this 

request be approved with the condition of no outside storage. 

  

Kearns said that he has lived at this location for 12 years.  Kearns said that this is not a full-time 

business and there would be no employees.  Kearns said that there will be no outside storage for 

the business.  Johnson asked about the easement that is located beside the building, and Kearns 

said that it would not be blocked in any way.  McDowell asked if there would be any major 

repair work or if it would become full-time.  Kearns stated that he would not do any major repair 

work and if it grew to a full-time business, he would relocate the business to town.  Johnson said 



that the only concern he would have would be the easement that currently accesses several 

properties located to the rear of Mr. Kearns.  Johnson asked that this easement not be blocked. 

  

John Bray, 5517 Jackson Creek Road, said that Kearns does all their service work and also for 

other people in the community.  Bray said that Kearns keeps the private road maintained without 

any help from those people that use the road.  Bray said that he didn’t see that this should be a 

problem for the community. 

  

There was no one present in opposition to the request. 

  

Brown made the motion to approve this request with the following conditions: 

  

**no more than 3 vehicles for the business that are not his 

**may not impede the private road access and easement. 

  

McLeod seconded this motion and the motion passed unanimously. 

  

6. REQUESTS FOR PROPERTY REZONING: 

  

A. R & H MOTOR LINES, INC., Asheboro, North Carolina, is requesting that 36.00 acres, located 

at 3344 R H Drive, Union Township, be rezoned from RA to LI-CU.  Parcel ID #’s 7626807585; 

7626809219; 762812108; 762802487; and 762804669.  The proposed Conditional Use Zoning 

would specifically allow R & H Motor Lines, Inc. to expand their trailer storage yard. 

  

The Technical Review Committee met and found that this proposal was in compliance with the 

standards outlined in the new Growth Management Plan adopted by the Board of County 

Commissioners on February 4, 2002.  The Technical Review Committee recommends to the 

County Planning Board that this request be approved with the condition that existing natural 

buffers be retained. 

  

Johnson explained that this is an expansion of storage due to economic down-turn.   

  

Edward Callicutt, Vice President, said that they don’t intend to do anything additional, but 

because of the economy they are needing more storage for their trailers.  Callicutt said that they 

have been in business here for 34 years. 

  

There was no one present in opposition to this request. 
  

  

McLeod made the motion, seconded by Morton, to recommend to the Commissioners that this 

request be approved.  The motion passed unanimously. 

  



B. JAMES SMITH, Greensboro, North Carolina, is requesting that 14.02 acres located at 6788 

Willard Road, Liberty Township, be rezoned to amend the current Heavy Industrial/Conditional 

Use Zoning which allows the operation of a go-kart raceway facility.  Parcel ID # 8725675147.  

Rocky River Watershed.  The proposed amendment would include possible changes in hours and 

days of operation. 

  

The Technical Review Committee advises the Planning Board to recommend to the 

Commissioners that this request be DENIED until such time Smith is in compliance with the 

conditions of his current zoning.  The County Attorney should also be instructed to take 

immediate enforcement action as requested by Planning Code Enforcement Staff to enforce the 

County Zoning regulations. 

  

Johnson gave the Board a review of the status of this request as formerly presented to the 

Planning Board and Board of County Commissioners.  Johnson said the original request was first 

approved by the Planning Board on April 4, 2000, and approved by the Board of County 

Commissioners on May 1, 2000.  The Commissioners approved the request as a Conditional Use 

and placed several specific conditions on the rezoning in order to allow the facility to operate 

while still reducing adverse impact on adjoining agricultural and residential properties.Almost 

immediately after the rezoning was approved, Johnson said the County Planning staff begin 

receiving calls concerning violations of operating hours.  Mr. Smith was notified by the County 

Planning staff on July 28, 2000, of violations concerning hours of operation.  Violations of time 

of operations continued. On June 4, 2001, Mr Smith was sent a letter by the County Planning 

staff advising him of violation of his Conditional Use Zoning, and advising Mr. Smith of his 

legal rights pending action by the County Attorney. On July 18, 2001, Mr. Smith submitted an 

application to have his Conditional Use Permit amended to allow different operating hours and 

days of operation.  The Planning Board approved the change in hours and days. On October 1, 

2001, the Board of County Commissioners voted 2-2 and Mr. Smith's petition to amend his 

Conditional Use Permit was denied (failure to obtain a majority vote).  On November 1, 2001, 

the violation was forwarded to the staff attorney for legal processing.  Johnson said Mr. Smith 

has again requested the County to reconsider his hours and days of operation.  Johnson advised 

the Planning Board he had asked the County staff attorney to delay filing legal action until this 

issue was considered by the Planning Board and Board of County Commissioners. 

  

Jim Smith, 4601 Schoolway Drive, Greensboro, said that when he originally requested the 

Conditional Use Rezoning, he was not fully aware of all the issues involved in running a race 

track.  He had agreed to the conditions, but almost as soon as his business began operations he 

realized that the days and hours of operation were not practical to go-kart racing demands.  

Smith said he was also not aware of how restrictive a proposed site plan was toward the 

operation of his facility.  Some of the buildings and parking/playground areas had changed 

because the Health Department had determined that he would need to relocate septic fields since 

bing issued the rezoning approval.  Smith said he had tried to meet all buffer requirements and 



had installed a solid fence along some of his property boundaries.  Smith said that he has some 

buffer along with fencing at the southern property line.  He is also constructing fencing along the 

northern, eastern, and western property line.  Smith said that some of the trees he planted for 

buffer died as a result of drought.  Smith said he tried to be responsible for trash clean up, and 

that although he tried to meet the days and hours of operation it was not always possible.  

Johnson said that it was important for Mr. Smith to be very specific in the hours, days, and type 

of operation, he was requesting.  Johnson said almost from the beginning of the first rezoning 

there was a mis-communication concerning whether the permit applied to "racing" hours or 

"practice" hours.  Smith and the Board needed to clearly agree on what was being requested.  

Johnson told Smith that he wants him to be specific with this request.  Johnson said that the first 

problem was the applicant felt practices should not be considered racing.  Smith said he is asking 

for 43 days out-of-a year to operate his track.  Smith said that this would be 43 days that he 

would operate (including practices).  Smith  provided the Board with a list of these dates.  

Johnson told Smith to be specific about his dates of ‘operation’ whether it be practice or racing.  

Smith said that these dates would be ‘activity’ (practice and/or racing).  Smith said that there will 

be no operation of the track in any form other than these dates.  McDowell asked if this will clear 

up any misunderstanding concerning the work ‘operation’.  Smith answered yes.  Johnson then 

asked what would be the specific hours of operation.  Smith said 8 am to 11 pm.  Johnson asked 

if these dates are only on Friday or Saturday.  Smith said that these dates are either on a Friday or 

a Saturday.  Smith said that if he has a rain date or a special event it would be possible for the 

track to operate both Friday and Saturday.  McDowell asked about the times on a Friday and 

Smith said that he would not want to limit the times on Friday, because he would not want to be 

held to fewer hours than those on Saturday.  Smith said that he will probably not start until 4 pm 

on Friday but he didn’t want to be held to those hours.  Johnson asked Smith why he would have 

agreed to conditions and times of operation if he did not plan to adhere to those conditions.  

Smith said he had all intentions to comply with his permit, but did not realize the conditions did 

not offer any flexibility.  Johnson said once a Conditional Use Zoning is approved, and the 

applicant agrees to the conditions, those conditions have the force of law, and the county is 

required to enforce violations the same as any other zoning code violation.  Smith said that he 

misunderstood and he wants hours of operation of 8 am to 11 pm, one day a week.  Morton said 

that he is concerned that the site plan be complied with as it was submitted in 2000.  Smith said 

that the playground equipment was destroyed by vandalism.  McDowell asked Smith if the 

equipment was destroyed by people not using the facility.  Smith said yes.  McDowell asked 

Smith if this site plan being presented was accurate.  Smith answered all with the exception that 

the northern property is not completely fenced at the current time.  Smith said that it will be 

completed.  Smith said most of the fencing is in place along the front of the property (eastern 

property line) with the exception of 2 gates.  Smith said that when he finishes the fence 

construction, the entire property will be fenced.  Ridge asked what he does for restrooms with 

large crowds visiting the site.  Smith said that he has one operational bathroom and he has port-a-

johns brought in. 

  
  



Marvin Wall, 6911 Sandy Creek Church Road, Staley, invited the Board to go out and visit the 

property.  Wall said that we have been involved in this issue for the past 3 years and he wants to 

know why nothing’s been done.  Wall said that Smith said that he didn’t know of violations this 

year.  Wall said that he operated on August 9th (Friday), and on August 10th they were operating 

at 8 am (before 9 am).  Wall asked if Smith is allowed to operate on Fridays and Saturdays, will 

his patrons be allowed to stay in their trailers on the property, like a trailer park.  Wall said that 

he has been allowed to operate outside of his Conditional Use Permit since it was issued.  Wall 

said that Mr. Brim, Planning Staff, had tried to work out an agreement between Smith and him.  

Wall said he thought this is what was going to be approved but Smith decided that he didn’t want 

to abide by that agreement.  Wall said that the only barrier they have from this operation (to his 

poultry business along the northern property line) is the trees on Wall’s property.  Wall said that 

the only buffers that have been planted are along the western property line and they are 20 ft. 

apart.  Wall said this is not enough buffer to help with the dust problems that is their concern.  

Wall said that they are subjected to loud noises and dusk-to-dawn lamps that run 7 days a week 

along with some large lights that are lit 10-12 hours 4 days a week.  McLeod asked Wall where 

he lives, and Wall answered about a mile away.  His poultry operation adjoins the track and his 

parents live adjoining the track.  Wall talked about problems of smoke due to trash barrels 

burning after the events.   Wall said he is just asking for Smith to comply with the regulations set 

forth by this Board.  Wall said the only time he can get trash picked up off his property (thrown 

out by race track patrons) is when he calls the Planning Department to complain.  Wall said that 

when the dust settles Smith gets in his car and goes home and they are still living here.  Morton 

asked who owned the property before Smith.  Wall answered Westmorelands.  Morton asked if 

they were kin to him and Wall answered yes; they were his cousins.  McLeod asked how they 

kept the operation.  Wall answered close to how it is operated today.  McLeod asked if he was 

opposed to the operation at that time and Wall answered that he just wants to be neighborly and 

this is not a neighborly operation.  McLeod asked if Wall just wanted the hours abided by and 

the trash picked up.  Wall said that if there was some bite to the County’s rules and regulations 

there wouldn’t be any problem.  Wall said that Smith has not followed the rules.  Wall said that 

he must have been a fool to believe that the law meant something.  Brown asked when the track 

was built and Smith answered 1974.  Brown asked when the chicken houses were built and Wall 

answered 1980 but if you really want to go back to his grandfather farmed here many years ago. 

  

Johnson said that the only reason the County became involved was because it ceased operations.  

McDowell said that this is not grandfathered and we have to deal with this issue.  Brown asked 

what was the best use of the land.  Johnson said that he is not in compliance with the conditional 

use permit and the case is currently in the hands of the County Attorney pending the outcome of 

the Board’s decisions.  Johnson said there have been more man hours spent on this single zoning 

code enforcement issue than any other case.  Brown said he felt both sides of this case have a 

valid point.  McDowell asked the height of the fencing and Smith answered 8 to 10 ft. of fencing.  

McDowell said that he questions what days the track will be open considering rain dates.  

Morton said he felt Smith needs his limits of Fridays and Saturdays with no more than 43 days 



per year and no more than 2 Sundays with a maximum operation of 45 days per year.  Morton 

said the permit should include limited hours of operation of 8 am to 11 pm on Friday and 

Saturday and 1 pm to 7 pm on Sundays.  Morton said Smith should also be required to keep this 

place clean.  Morton said he shouldn’t be burning trash on-site; it should be picked up.  Morton 

said all the fencing should be 8 ft. minimum height.  McDowell said he felt the fencing should be 

required around the entire facility with the exception of the section of fencing not currently up 

along Willard Road.  Morton said all trash should be picked up and disposed of within 24 or 48 

hours after an event.   

  

Morton made the motion, seconded by Ridge, to recommend to the Commissioners that this 

request be approved with the following conditions: 

  

**Total of 45 operating days per year (43 days on Fridays or Saturdays 8 am - 11 pm and 2 

Sundays 1 pm - 7 pm) 

**All trash must be picked up and disposed of within 48 hours after an event 

**No burning of trash on-site, must be approved disposal 

**8 ft. fencing around entire facility with the exception of a section along Willard Road 

  

Smith agreed with these conditions.  The motion passed unanimously. 

  

C. JAMES & MARY KIVETT, Staley, North Carolina, are requesting that 10.17 acres located on 

Soapstone Mountain Road, Columbia Township, Sandy Creek Watershed, be rezoned from RA 

to RLOR-CU.  Parcel ID #’s 8725411501; 8725415017; and 8725417101.  The proposed 

Conditional Use Zoning District would specifically allow the development of a 2-lot subdivision 

for site-built homes, modular homes and Class-A double-wide mobile homes on permanent 

masonry foundation with a minimum house size of 1,200 sq. ft. 

  

The Technical Review Committee reviewed this request and recommends to the Planning Board 

that this request be DENIED based on a decision made by County Commissioners,  in their 

August meeting, concerning another 10-acre tract within this same 4-lot development.   

  

Jerry King, Surveyor, said that this plan would be compatible with the housing patterns in the 

area.  King said there has been a lot of growth in this area.  Johnson asked King where the drives 

would be located and King answered along the existing field area (not in the wooded section of 

the property).  King said that Kivett lives near this area. 

  

Hazel Kimrey, 6844 Sandy Creek Church Road, asked how the land was divided into the 3 small 

plots showing on the County maps currently.  Kimrey said that the Board said they could only 

divide the larger tract into 10-acre tracts.  Kimrey said that they feel like they have had the 

Chinese water treatment with this development and Lanier’s development.  They’ve been given a 

treatment of one drop at a time.  Kimrey discussed her concern for the water-table and how this 



continued development will affect it.  Kimrey said this is in a watershed.  Kimrey said people are 

not owners of the land; they are just stewards of the land.  Kimrey asked if we are taking good 

care of the land God has intrusted to us. 

  

Johnson said that his concern would be the location of the driveway connections.  Morton said 

that this is a bad location for a driveway, whether it is 1 or 2 driveways.  McLeod said it’s hard 

to take a curve out of a road.  King said if you are going to have a curve, this is the best kind to 

have due to the sight distance this type of curve allows. 

  

McLeod made the motion, seconded by Morton, to recommend to the Commissioners that this 

request be approved.  The motion passed unanimously. 

  

7. Discussion of renaming those roads needing to be renamed as a result of the Randleman Lake project 

  

Johnson reviewed the two sections of Walker Mill Road that will need to be renamed due to the 

Randleman Lake project.  Johnson gave proposed name changes as: 

  

Section 1 - River Mill Road 

Section 2 - Stanton Farm Road 

Johnson described the northern section of Spencer Road (off of Davis Country Road) that needed to be 

renamed.  Johnson gave a proposal of Newline Branch Road because of a branch that flows immediately 

south of where Spencer Road previously crossed Muddy Creek.  

  

8. The meeting adjourned at 8:50 p.m.  There were 20 people present for this meeting. 

  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

NORTH CAROLINA 

RANDOLPH COUNTY 
 


